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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.
Amsierdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of ERB New Europe Funding B.V,, the Board of Managing Directors herewith submits the Annual
Report of ERB New Europe Funding B V., (the Company) for Lhe year ended 3 | December 2016

Key Activities

ERB New Europe Funding B.V. (the Company) was incorporated on 19 October 2006 and has its registered address at Herengracht 500,
Amsterdam, The Netherlands. The Company is incorporaled in The Netheriands and is wholly owned by Eurobank Ergasies S A in Greece. On L
November 2012 the Company changed ils name to ERB New Europe Funding B.V. (former name: EFG New Europe Funding B.V.)

In 2006, the Company initiated & corporatc loan portfolio, originaling from the Eurobank Ergasias Group's aclivities in Serbia, (o invest in loans
granied (o Serbian Corporates and/or Eurobank Ergasias Group companies in Serbia. The Company ilself is fanded directly by the Eurobank
Private Bank Luxembourg S A. in Luxembourg

All loans and ad lo thid party are 99% d for rep by Eurobank AD. Beograd, All loans and advances to
Eurobank Ergasias Group companics, except Reco Real Property AD Beograd, arc 99% d by Erpasias S A AD
Beograd issued a guarantec for the loans and advances lo Reco Real Property AD Beograd. The tolal combincd exposure for the Company will
not exceed 1% of its olal loans and advances with 8 meximum of 2 million Euro

The Board of Managing Directors of the Company hes performed an asscssment on the recoverbility of all loans and the ability (financial
resources and liquidity) of A.D, and Eurob S.A and 1 that Eurob AD and bank Ergasias S A arc able to fulfil
their i rding Lhe given Lo the Company.

Overview of activilies

During the financial ycar 2016 the Company decreased its loan portfolio for a total amount of EUR 11.322 585 (2015: 31.785 439)
The loan portfolio was d by repi from

Position of Eurobank Group
Macroeconomic environment

Greece's real GDP is expecled to grow by 1.8% in 2017, according to the 2018 Draft Budget submitled in Parliament in early October 2017
(Europcan Commission Autumn Forccast for 2017 at 1.6%) from -0.03% in 2016, according to recent Hellenic Statistical Authority (ELSTAT)
data. On the fiscal fronl, the 2016 Greece's primary balance registered a surplus of 3.9% of GDP oulperforming the 0.5% of GDP Third
Economic Adjustment Program (TEAP) target. According lo the 2018 Draft Budget the primary surplus for 2017 and 2018 is cxpected al 2 2%
and 3.6% of GDP, respectively.

In Junc 2017, Greece, after the implementation ol a series of prior actions including struciural seferms and fiscal struciural measures amounting
(0 2% of GDP for Lhe post program period, successfully concluded the second review of TEAR, which paved the way for the release of the next
loan tranche to Greece under the existing adjustment program, emounting to € 8.5 bn in lwo sub-lranches, for debt servicing needs and arrears
clearance. The first sub-tranche of € 7.7 bn has been disbursed in June 2017. The second sub-tranche of € 0.8 bn was disbursed in late Oclober
2017 after the progress by the Greek authorities Lowards the cl of the gencral g arrears to the private scctor. On 25 July 2017,
the Greek govemment, on the back of the joned posilive issued a € 3 bn five-year bond al a yield 0f 4.625% for the [irst
time since July 2014, The proceeds of the bond issue will be used for further liability/debt management and for the build-up of a statc cash buffer
in the context ol the 15 June 2017 Eurogroup’s decisions
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Positlon of Eurobank Group (continued)

The completion of the second program review has reduced the uncertainlics that prevailed during the first months of the year and improved
expeclations for an increase in the domestic economic activity in the second half of 2017. The third review of TEAP commenced al the end of
Oclober 2017 and its Limely completion would lcad to the disburscment of an additional € 5 bn. The decisive implementation of Lhe reforms
agreed in the context of the TEAP, (he implementation of further debt relicf measures in accordance with 24 May 2016 Eurogroup decisions, the
mobilization of Europcan Union (EU) funding to support domeslic investment and job crcuuon the attraction of foreign and domestic capital and
the adoption of an extroverl cconomic developmenl model would facilitate the ol d in the prosp of the Greek cconomy
and the further stabilization of thc domestic cconomic environmenl, which arc necessary conditions for the rclum of the country Lo a strong and
suslainable growth path.

Currcntly, the main risks and uncerlainlics arc associaled with (a) the possible delays in the implementation of the reforms ' agenda in order lo
meet the next targets and milestoncs of the TEAP, (b) the impact on the level of economic activity and on the auraction of direcl investments
from the fiscal and social security-related measurcs agreed under the rovicws of the TEAP, (c) the liming of a full Iifl of restrictions in the frec
movement of capilal and the respective impact on the level of cconomic activily, (d) the possible slow pace nfdcposlls inflows and/ or possible
delays in the effeclive of non-| ‘ming (NPEs) as a result of the chall ditions in Greece and
() the geopolilical conditions in the broader region and Ihe external shocks from a slowdown in the global economy.

Liquidity risk

In d with the agr with the partners the authorilics arc i (o preserving sufficient liquidity in thc banking
sysiem, as long as Greeoe meets ils obligations under the ESM program. The succcssful cumplcuon of the second review of the TEAP has
enhanced Greece's credibilily towards the international markets and imp: d the d i which along with the returm to

positive cconomic growth rate is expected Lo accelcrate in turn the deposil inflows in the banking system, the faster relaxation of capital controls
and the further access lo the markets for liquidity

As al 30 Scplember 2017, Eurobank (thc Bank) has managed to reduce its dependence on Eurosysiem funding mainly through assel
deleveraging, deposil inflows and increased market rcpos on covered bonds and Greek treasury bills. In the same conlext, the Bank also reduced

its participation in the second sircam of the Hellenic Republic’s liquidity support plan

Solvency risk

The Group itors closcly the devel in the Greck i i teking into account its direct and indirect cxposure lo
sovercign risk. A major arca of focus is lhe active of i with the aim to ially reduce their stock in
accordance with the Bank’s operational targets and teking advantage of the Group's internal i . the | gislative changes and

(he extemal partnerships (hal have laken or are expected Lo take place

The Group remains focused on Ihe orgamic strengthening of its cupnal posluon by the further cxpnnslon of pre-provision income while

i its robust risk i and by ding to iated with (hc restrucluring, ransformation or
oplimization of operations, in Greece and abroad, that will generate or relcasc further capital and/or reduce risk weighted asscls. The Group’s
Common Equity Tier | (CETL) ratio stood at 173 % st 30 September 2017 (31 December 2016: 17.6%) and the net profit attribulable lo
shareholders amounted to € 61 million for Lhe period ended 30 Seplember 2017 (31 December 2016: € 230 million)

The Management, taking inlo consideration the above factors relaling to the adequacy of the Group’s capllal position and its anticipated

continued access to Eurosystem funding over the foresccable future, as well as the improving it in Greeee, has been
satisfied that the (inancial stalements of the Compary can be prepared on a going concern basis
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.
Amslerdam

Report of the board of Managing Directors

Credit Rating of Eurobank Group

The parent company’s (Eurobank Ergasias Group) long tcrm rating was 'CCC+ at August 2016 (2015 'SD, 2014: CCC+) according lo the
Standard & Poor’s credit rating

Result

During the year under review, the Company recorded a loss of EUR 111.278 (2015: profit after tax of EUR 205 898) which is set out in delail in
the auached Income Statement

Risk Management

The Company's activitics cxpose il 10 a varicty of risks. Exposure Lo credit risk, inlercst rate risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk arises in
the normal coursc of the Company’s business. The risk management of the Company is organized from Serbia and the management of the
Company is provided with the outcome periodically. The Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markels and secks to minimize polential adversc cffects on its financial performance

The management considers there is no significant concentration of the following risks at the balance sheel dale. The procedurcs for asscssing the
risk arc also shown below:

Credit risk

Credit risk - is the risk of a financial loss Lo the Company if a customer or counterparty Lo a financial instrument fails to mect ils contractual
obligations, and ariscs principally from the loans and advances lo customers For credit risk management reporting purposcs, the Company

and lidales all el of credit risk cxp (such as indivi obligor risk, sector risk, repayment risk, cct )
The credil risks are reduced (o the fact that all loans and ad o are 99% d for rep. by Ergasias Group
companics, Eurobank A D. Beograd and Eurobank Ergasias S.A. All these ics are icntly capitalized to cover the granted guarantics,

and therefore the Company has only a 1% risk with a maximum of 2 million on its loan portfolia
‘The Company has defined risk grading system which is based on various factors: financial, sector, management and opcrations

The cuslomers which were granted loans & advances erc obligated to provide the Company with imevocable and unconditional payment
guarantee issucd by Eurobank A.D. Beograd

Market risk

The Company takes on cxposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate
because of changes in market priccs. Markel risks arise from open positions in interest ratc, currency and equily products, all of which arc
exposcd to general and specific movements and changes in the ievel of volatility of markel ratcs of prices such as interest rates, foreign cxchange
rales and equily prices.

Interest rate risk

The risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becausc of changes in markel inlerest rates. Loan assets and loan liabilitics
are undertaken back Lo back on Lerms that both relate 1o the same variable Euribor or Libor rale. The risk is fully compensated by this balance and
hence Lhere is no sensilivily risk Lo a change in interest rate

Foreign currency risk

The risk that asscts or liabilities in forcign currencies will Muctuate in value due (o exchange rate fluctuations. Loan assels and loan liabilitics are
undertaken back to back in the identical currencies. Thus this risk is fully compensated by this balance. Hence there is only immaterial foreign
currency risk, which is on the difference between interest reccivable and interest payable stated in a foreign currency. At this lime, the only
forcign currency exposure is CHF (Swiss Francs)

Liquidity risk

The risk that daily calls on its cash may exceed available cash resources. Loan assels and loan liabililies are underiaken back to back and on a non
recourse basis. This risk is fully compensated by this balance.

Capital managemenl

The Company’s policy is Lo mainlain a stablc capital besc so as to support the Company’s operations and sustain future development of the
business as necessary. Capital consists of issued and paid up capital, sharc premium and other reserve, The Company is nol required to comply
with any capital requirements sct by the regulalors

For further analysis we refer to nole 6 of the financial stalements in which the different risks identified for the Company have been further
addressed

Outlook

There were no changes in the naturc of the activitics of the Company in 2016 and no changes are cxpected in 2017 The Company will continuc
operating in the same manner and mainlaining existing porifolio of clients. No significant new business and rclationships arc planned for 2017
Funding of the Company will remain thc semc and under the same terms. Capital base of the Company is adequate and no increase arc necded
No investments arc planncd cither in human resources or in any other area
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.
Amsterdam

Report of the board of Managing Dircclors
Posl balance sheef events
'No major post balance sheet events affecling the financial salements have occurred to datc
Future Developments

The Company’s business strategy end activilics are linked Lo thesc of Eurobank Ergasias S A.,which is the direct shareholder of the Company
The asscssment by the dircctors of the Company's on going business model is closely associated with the business decisions and operations of the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries On the basis of the analysis of the Company’s profltability, capilalization and funding the
Dircclors are satisficd that the Company hes adcquale resources Lo continuc in business for the foresecable future.

Composition of the Board of Managing Directors

The size and composition of the Board of Managing Directors and the bincd and isc should reflect the best fit for profilc
and strategy of the Company. Currently all four members of the Board are male, The Company is aware that the gender diversity is below the
poals as sct out in article 2:276 section 2 of the Dulch Civil Code and the Company will pay closc attenlion to gender diversity in the process of
recruiting and appointing new Managing Dircctors

As per January 30, 2017, Mr. E R Janssenss has resigned as Maging Dircclor of the Company, and as per same dalc Mr. L P. Elstershamis has
becn appointed as Managing Director of the Company.

Amsicrdam, January 12, 2018

The Board of Managing Direclors,
ERB New Europe Funding B.V.
Chamber of Commerce number: 34258424

S. Psychogyios E. Zois
L P. Elstershamis R Wemmi
PricewaterhouseCoopers
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.,

S of Fi ial Position as at Dy

b

31,2016

(In EUR, afier appropriation of results)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Loans & advances to customers

Current assets
Loans & advances to customers
Interest receivable
Other receivables
Taxation
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of the company
Issued and paid-up capital
Share premium
Other reserve

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings from group company

Current liabilities
Borrowings from group company
Interest payable to group company
Other payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes 31/12/2016 31/12/2015
7 39,823,192 43,319,233
39,823,192 43,319,233
7 23,925,396 31,796,218
8 58,700 303,687
9 2,537 98,380
15 2,253 12,009
10 1,890,575 1,973,866
25,879,461 34,184,160
65,702,653 77,503,393

11
18,000 18,000
1,982,000 1,982,000
2,096,005 2,207,283
4,096,005 4,207,283
12 37,571,315 43,154,489
37,571,315 43,154,489
12 23,904,894 29,953,511
13 59,625 49,134
14 70,814 138,976
24,035,333 30,141,621
65,702,653 77,503,393

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Fi ial i and

-

Interest income on loans & advances
Interest expense on borrowings

Impairment loss on loans and interest receivable

Commission expenses
Financial income and expenses

Other net income
General and Administrative Expenses

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Corporate income tax

(LOSS)/PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

Income Statement
for the financial year ended December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements

Page 6

Note 1/1 - 31/12/2016 1/1 - 31/12/2015

1,575,533 2,468,284

-1,375,723 -2,026,608

199,810 441,676

6.1 -23,278 9,919

16 42,792 -74,259

133,740 357,498

17 4,579 47,079

18 230,283 -143,381

91,964 261,197

15 -19.314 -55,299

-111,278 205,898
PricewaterhouseCoopers
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Statement of comprehensive income
for the financial year ended December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

Notes 1/1 - 31/12/2016 1/1 - 31/12/2015

(Loss)/profit after taxation -111,278 205,898
Other comprehensive income: e -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
-111,278 205,398

Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements

Page 7 E]
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Cash Flow Statement

for the financial year ended December 31, 2016

(in EUR)

Cash Mow from operating Activities:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Adjustments for:
Impairment loss on loans and advances
Interest income
Interest expense

(D )/ 1
Decrease in loans & advances to customers

in other bl

Py

Cash penerated from operations
Income Tax received

Income Tax paid

Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash from operation activities

Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings from group company
Repayments of borrowings from group company

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash flow from investing activities:

Notes

1/1-31/12/2016

6.1

15
15

1,375,723

11,366,863

-1,365,231

-11,631,790

-91,964

23,278
-1,575,533

-268,496
-65,987

11,032,380
23,435
35,398
1,820,520

48,864

During the financial year 2016 & 2015 there were no investing activities in the Company.

11,499,632

83,294

1,973,865

1,890,571
—

1/1-31/12/2015

261,197

9,919
2,468,284

2,026,608

-170,560
2,175

31,785,439

31,617,054

2,513,741

-2,093,732

101,676

-33,110,065

32,037,063

-33,008,389

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

EQUITY

As at December 31, 2016, 18.000 shares were issued and fully paid-up. The movements in EUR in the year under review
can be summarized as follows:

Attributable to owner's parent

Issued and Share Other

paid-up capital premium reserve Total equity
Balance as at January 1, 2015 18,000 1,982,000 2,001,385 4,001,385
Additions - - - -
Profit for the year - - 205,898 205,898
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - -
Balance as at December 31, 2015 18,000 1,982,000 2*207.283 4,207,283
Loss for the year - - -111,278 -111,278
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - -
Balance as at December 31, 2016 18,000 1,982,000 2,096,005 4,006,005

The notes to the Financial Statements on pages 10 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes 1o (he Financial Staterents as at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

| GENERAL

ERB New Europe Funding 3 V. (the Company) was incorporaled on October 19, 2006 and has its registered and office address at Herengrachl 500,
Amsterdam, the Netherlands The Company is incorporaled in The Netherlands and is wholly owned by furobank Frgasias S A in
Greece The Company's Chamber of Commerce number is 34258424

On November |, 2012 the Company changed ils name to ERT3 New Europe Funding B V- (former name: EFG New Europe Funding B V)

The key activities of the Company are to invest in loans granied to Scrbian Corporates (originated by the Eurobank Trgasias Group in Scrbia) or Eurcbank
Ergasias Group companies in Serbia The Company itsclf is funded direclly by the Eurobank Privale Bank in Luxcmbourg Al loans and advances lo customers are
9% d for repay by Furobank A D. and Eurobark Lrgasias $ A

These [inancial slatements were spproved and authorized for issuc by the Board of Managing Direclors on October 31,2017

~

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
‘The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparalion of thesc finencial statements arc scl out below:
Baxsis of preparation

The financial stalements have been prepared in accordance wilh Inlermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the IASB, &s endorsed by the
Furopean Union (EU), and in particular with those IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations issued and clfective or issued and early adopted as al Lhe lime of preparing
these These financial have been preparad under (he historical cost convenlion and on ongoing concen basis

The policies set out below have been consistently applied o Lhe years 2016, 2015, 2014 and 2013 Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform with changes in presentation in the current year

The of finsncial in confeemity with IFRS roguires the use of eslimates and assumptions that affoct the reportid amounts of assels and
ligbilities and disclonure of conlingent liabilitics at the date of the [inancial statements and Lhe reported amounts of revenues and expenses dhuring he reporting
period Although Uhese cslimales are based on management's best knowledge of current events and aclions, actual resulis ultimately may difler from Lhose estimales
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Amendmenis to standards adopied by (he Company
The following amendments to standards, as issued by Lhe International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and endorsed by the European Urion (EU), apply (rom
| January 2016:

TAS 1, Amendment-Disclosure Inllative

The amendment clarifies Lhat an enlity need nol provide in the financial statements, including lhe notes, a specific disclosure required by an IFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material and also clarifies that addilional disclosures may be necessary if the information required by [FRSs is nol sufTicienl for
an understanding of Lhe impact of particular lransactions and cvenls on the enlity*s financial position and performance

The line items listed in IAS 1 for the balance sheet and Lhe statement of profil or loss should be disaggregaled i this is relevant to an understanding of the enlily’s
(inancial position and addilional guidance on lhe use of sublolals is provided In the statement of comprehensive income the share of the other comprehensive
income of equily-accounted associates and joint venlures should be presenled in aggreale as & single line item, classified belween those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profil or loss and when dotermining a systemalic approach Lo presenting noles, Lhe entity should consider the understand sbility and
comparability of ils financial statements

The adoplion of the amendmenl had no impact on the Company s financial statemenls

IAS 27, Amendment-Equlty Method in Separate Financial Statements

The amendment allows enlilies to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associalcs in their separale financial
statements and clarifics the definition of separate financial statements In particular, separate financial statements arc Ihose presented in addition Lo consolidated
financial stalcments or in addition lo the financial statements of an investor that docs not have i in subsidiaries but has i in iales or joinl
ventures which are required by IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Venlures® o be accounted for using the cquity method
The adoplion of the amendment had no impact on the Company s [inancial statements

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 28, Amendments-Invesiment Entifles: Applying the Consolldatlon Exception
The d clarify the epplication of the lidati ian for the subsidiaries of i enlilies
The adoplion of the amendments had no impact on the Company s [inancial statemenls

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The amendments intraduce key changes (o seven [FRSs [ollowing the publication of the resulis of the IASB’s 2010-12 cycle of Lhe annual improvements project
The topics addressed by these amendments arc set oul below:

* IFRS 2 *Share-based Payment’: The lerms ‘performance condition’ and *service condition’ are separately defined,

= IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinalions’: Il is clarified Lhat conti i ion in a business isition Lhal is not classified as equily, whether or nol it falls within
Lhe scope of IAS 39 (or IFRS 9 once adopted), is subscquently measured at fair value at cach reporting date, with changes in [air valuc recognized in profil or loss;
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financiul Statomenty m st Decomber 31, 2016

(in EUR)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
» IFRS 8 'Operaling Scgment’: Discl, of the jud made by in aggs ing opcraling segmenls is required, including a deseriplion of the
segments aggregated and Lhe cconomic indi assessed in d ining that the segments share similar cconomic characteristics Furthermore, a

reconciliation of scgmenl asscts Lo the cntity s lotal assels 1s required if the reconciliation is reported to Lhe chicf operating decision maker;

« IFRS 13 *Fair Valuc Measurement’: IU is clarified thal shorl-term receivables and payables with no stated inlerest rales can be held al invoice amounls when the
effeel of discounting is immaterial;

« [AS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment”: 1t is clarified how Lhe gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation arc treated where an enuly uses lhe
revaluation model,

« [AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™: 1L is clarified (hat an eniity that provides key management personnel scrvices to Lhe reporting entity or Lo its parent (the
managemenl calily) 15 a related perty Lo the reporting enlily and the amounts charged to il for services provided should be disclosed; and

«IAS 38 "[ntangible Assets™ Tt is clarified how the gross carrying amount and the accumulaled amortization are lrealed where an entily uscs the revalualion modch

The adoplion of thc amendments had no impact on the Company°s (inancial slalements

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments introduce key changes to four IFRSs following the publication of the results of the IAS3’s 2012-14 cycle of the annual improvements project The
topics addressed by (hese amendments are sel oul below:

- IFRS 5 *Non-current asscls held for sale and disconlinued operations’: Tt 1s clarified thal, when an assct {or disposal group) is reclassified from *held for sale' lo
“held for distribution®, or vice versa, this does not constitule a change lo a plan of sale or distribution, and does nol have to be accounted for as such Therefore he
assel (or disposal group) does not need ta be rainstated in the financia] sletements, as if it had never been classified as ‘held for sale® or *held for distribution’,
simply becausc Lhe manner of disposal has changed;

« [FRS 7 ‘Financial instruments’: Specilic guidance is added 1o help management delermine whether the terms of en arrangement Lo serviee a financial assel which
has been lransfcrred constilule continuing involvement. Tt is also clarified that the addilional disclosure required by the lo IFRS 7, *Discl
Ofsctling financial assets and [inancial liabilities” is not specifically required for all interim periods, unless required by [AS 34 *Interim financial reporling”;

* IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits”: When delermining Lhe discount rate for post-employment benelit obligations, it is the currency Lhat the liabilities are denominated in
that is important, and nol the counlry where Lhey arise; and

*1AS 34 'Interim [inancial reporting™: It is clarificd that the reference in the standard to ‘information disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial report” means some
olher stalament (such as management commenlary or risk report) thal is available lo uscrs of the financial slataments at (he same lime as the interim [inancial
stal ts, requiring a e from the interim [mancial statements Lo the location of that informalion

The adoption of the amendments had no impact on the Company °s financial stalements

New to and inter ions nol yet adopted by the Company

A number of new standards, amendments 10 existing standards and inlerpretations are cffective afler 2016, as they have not yet been endorsed by Lhe European
Union or have not been carly applied by the Company  Those thal may be relevant to the Company are scl oul below:

1AS 7,A Initiative (effective | January 2017, not yet endorsed by EU)

The amendmenl requires disclosure of information cnabling users of financial stalements lo cvaluate changes in liabilities arising {rom financing activities, including
both changes from cash flows and non-cash changes The disclosure requirements also apply Lo changes in [inancial asscts, such as assets thal hedge liabilities
arising from financing aclivitics, il cash lows from those financial assels were or fuure cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing aclivilics.

The adoplion of the amendmenl is nol expected Lo impacl the Company’s financial stalemenls

Classlfication and measurement
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (effective 1 January 2018)

In July 2014, the 1ASB published the final version of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ which replaces IAS 39 ‘Financial [nstrumenls: Recognition and
Measurement’ IFRS 9 includes revised requirements on he classification and measurcmant of [inancial assels and liabilities, impairment of financial assels and
hedge accounting

IFRS 9 applies a new classilicalion and measurcmenl approach for all types ol financial asscts that reflects the enlily’s business mode] lor managing the assels and
thir contractual cash flow characlerislics IFRS 9 requires financial assels to be classified into one of the following measurcment calegorics: amorlized cosl, fair
value through other comprehensive income (F VOCT) or fair valuc through profiL or loss (FVTPL) The standard climinales the existing IAS 39 calegorices of held-lo-
malurily, loans and reccivables and available for sale

Financial asscls will be measured at amortized cost if they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash [lows, and their contraclual cash [lows represent solcly payments of principle and interest (SPPI) Financial assels will be measured at FVOC] il they arc held
wilhin a business modcl whose objeclive is achieved by both collecting contraclusl cash flows and selling financial assels and Lheir conlraclual cash flows represent
solely payments of principle and interest All other financial asscls will be classilied al FVTPL,

An cntity may al inilisl recognition, designalc a [inancial asscl al FVTPL if doing so climi or signil ly reduces an i i h Furthermore, on
inilial recognition of an cquily instrument Lhat is not held for trading, an cnlity may irrevocably clecl Lo present subsequent changes in [air vatue in OCIL This
clection is made on an investment-by-investment basis

Under IFRS 9, cmbedded derivalives in contracts where (he hosl is a [inancial asset in the scope of the standard are no longer bifurcaled Inslead, the hybrid
financial inslrumenl is assessed for classificalion as a wholc.

IFRS 9 relains most of lhe cxisting requirements for [inancial liabilities Flowever, for financial liabilitics designated at FVTPL, gains or losses atlributeble to
changes in own credil risk shall be presented in OCL and shall not be subsequently Iransferred 10 profit or loss unless such a presentation would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch Under IAS 39, all fair value changes of liabililics designated at FVTPL are recognized in profit or loss unless this would create or enlarge an
accounling mismatch

IAS 12, Amendment-Recognlilon of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (effective 1 January 2017, not yet endorsed by EU)

The amendmen! clarifics Lhat (a) unrcalized losses on debt instruments measured at [air value in the financial statements and al cosl for tax purposes may give rise
10 a deduclible temporary dilference imrespeclive of whether lhe cnlity expects to recovar the carrying amount of Lhe debt instrument by sale or use (b) estimates for
future taxable prolils exclude tax deductions resulling from Lhe reversal of those deductible (emporary differences (c) Lhe estimate of probable future taxable profils
may includc the recovery of an assct for more than ils carrying amount, if there is sufficient evidence that iL is probable that this will be realized by Lhe enlily, and
(d) a deferred (ax assel is assessed in combinalion wilh all of the other deferred lax assels whare the tax law does nol restrict the sources of Laxable prolils against
which lhe cntity may make deductions on Lhe reversal of that deducliblc lemporary difference Where restriclions apply, deferred (ax asscls are asscssed in
combinalion only with other deferred tax assels of the same lype

‘The adoplion of the amendment is nol expected Lo impact the Company”s consolidaled financial stalamenls
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V,

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business model assessment

The business model reflects how the Company menages the assels in order to gencrale cash flows. That is, whether the Company’s abjective is solely lo collecl
contraclual cash (lows from (he asset, o realize cash [lows from Lhe salc of assels, or both (o callect contractual cash lows and cash flows from the sale of assels
Financial essels Lhat are held for (rading or that arc managed on a fair valuc basis will be measured al FVTPL

The Company's approach is lo perform the business model assessment consistenly with its operating model and the informalion provided Lo key management
persomel In making the above assessment the Company will consider & number of [aclors including:

« the stated policics and objectives for each portfolio;

* how the performance of cach porifolio is evaluated and reporled;

* Lhe risks associated with the performance of Ihe business model and how (hosc risks are managed;

~ how managers arc compensated; and

* pasl experience on how the cash [lows from Lhose portfolios were collected, expectations about lulure sales aclivity and how the Company's slaled objective for
managing Lhe (inancial assets is achieved

SPPI assessment

In asscssing whether Lhe contraclual cash flows are solcly payments of principle and inlerest, the Company will consida whether the contractual lerms of the
instrument are consistent wilh a basic lending arrangemant i ¢. intercst includes only consideration for the time valuc of moncy, credit risk, other basic lending risks
and a profit margin This will include an assessment of whether a linancial asscl conlains a contraciual term Lhal could change Lhe amount or liming of contractual
cash flows in a way Lhat il would not be consistent with the above condilion Where the conlractual lerms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial assct will be measured at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

[FRS 9 introduces an expeetad eredil loss (ECL ) model thal replaces the incurred loss model in 1AS 39 The new requiremenls eliminate the threshold in IAS 39 thal
required a credil event Lo have oceurred before credit losses were recognized and will apply Lo a broader ion of [inancial i d o [AS 39
The measurement of ECL will require Lhe use of complex models and significant judgment about future economic condilions and credit behavior

The new impairmenl medel will apply Lo [inancial assets thal arc nol measured at FVTPL, including loans, lease reccivables, debl seeurilics, financial guarantee
contracls and loan i issuad No impai loss will be ized on equity i

The new standard uses a ‘lhroe stage approach” that will reflecl changes in credit quality since inilial recognilion Al cach reporting date, a loss allowance cqual lo
12-month ECL will be recognized for debl investment securitics that are delermined to have a low credil isk at the reporling dale, and for all olher financial asscls
Tor which Lhere is no significanl increase in credit risk since initial recognition 12-month ECL arc the portion of ECL thal result from default evenls thal are
possible within the next 12 months after the reporting dale For financial assets that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
where no specific loss event has been identified, a loss allowance equal to lifelime expectad eredit losses will be ized The loss all for p or
originaled credit impaired [inancial assets will always be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL Financial asscts where 12-month ECL are recognized are
considered lo be in “stage-1"; financial asscls which have exparienced a significant increase in credi risk arc in *slage-2” and [inancial asscts thal are credil impaired
are in ‘slage-3°

The measurement of expecled eredil losses will be a probability -weighted average amount that will reflect the lime value of money. In measuring ECL, informalion
about pasl cvenls, current conditions and ble and forceasls of [ulure itions should be iderad The new impais model is expeeled to
resull in a higher loss allowance for the Company compared to 1AS 39

The implementation of IFRS9 is niol expecled Lo have a significant impact on the Company s (inancial statements, since any addilional impairments arc Lo be borne
by Lhe guarantors (other Eurobank Group entities, see Nole 7 for more details)
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financlal Statements as at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle (effective 1 January 2017 and 1 January 2018, not yet endorsed by EU)

The amendments introduce key changes to lwo IFRSs following the publication of Lhe results of the [ASB’s 2014-16 cycle o the annual improvements projecl The
topics addressed by these amendments are st oul below:

« IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Enlities': It is clarified thal the disclosure requirements in [FRS 12 apply lo an entily’s intevest in & subsidiary, a jont
venlure or an associate classificd as held [or sale except for the requircment for summarized [financial information The amendment applies for annual periods
beginning on or afier 1 January 2017; and

- [AS 28 ‘Invesiments in Associales and Joml Ventures': ILis clarified that venture capilal organizalions, mulual funds, unit trusts and similar entities arc allowed (o
elect measuring Lheir investments in associates or joint ventures al fair value through profil or loss The amendment applics for armual periods beginning on or afler
| January 2018

The adoption of Lhe amendments is nol expected lo impact the Company’s linancial statements

TFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactlons and Advance Consideration (effective | January 2018, not yet endorsed by EU)

IFRIC 22 provides raquirements about which exchange rale lo use in reporting forcign currency transaclions that involve an advance paymenl or reccipl The
interpretation clarifies thal in this casc, the date of the transaction [or the purpose of delermining the exchange ralc Lo use on initial recognilion of Lhe rdaled asset,
expense or income is the date of lhe advance consideration, i when the entity initially ized the lary asset asscl) or lary
liability (deferred income liability) arising from the advance consideration If there are mulliple payments or reccipls in advance, the enlity musl determine a date of
transaction for each payment or reccipt

The adoption of the inlerpretation is not expecled lo impact the Compeny °s financial stalements

The financial stalancnls arc prepared under the hislorical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of available-lor-sale financial assets and of financial assels
and financial liabilities (including derivative inslruments) at fair-value-through-profil-or-loss

The preparation of (inancial slalaments in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimalcs end assumplions that affect the reported amounls of assels and
linbilities and disclosure of conlingenl liabilitics at the dalc of the (inanciel stalamenls, as well as the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period Although Lhese estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ullumately may differ from those
eslimales

The Company 's presentation currency is the Furo (€) being the funclional currency of the parent company.

Golng concern

The accompanying financial stalements have been prepared based on Lhe going concan principle, which assumes that the Company will conlinue Lo operate in the
foresecable future: In order (o assess the bility of Lhis ion, Lhe reviews Lhe forecasts of Lhe fulure cash inflows

The Board of Dircclors, laking into consideration the factors mentioned in the Report of Lhe board of Managing Dircctors, have becn satisfied Lhal the financial
stalaments of the Company can be prepared on a going concem basis

Functional and presentation currency
The Company’s presenlalion currency is the Euro (€) being the funclional curvency of Lhe parent company

Foreign currency

Ti ions in [oreign ics arc d into Euro at the foreign exchange rale prevailing at the dale of the iransaction Monetary assels and liabililies
statad in foreign currencies at the balance sheet dalc are translated into Furo at the foreign exchange rate prevailing al thal date Forcign exchange differcnces
arising on lalion arc ized in Lhe Income

Non-monctary assets and liabilities in [oreign currencics, which arc stalad at historical cosl, are translated into Euro at the forcign exchange rale prevailing al the
dale of the lransaction, in (he Balance Sheet Any resulling is also ized in the Income

Income tax

Income lax in the fncome Statement for Lhe year compnises current lax. Current lax is the expected lax payable based on the laxable profit for the year, using lax
rates cnacled or subslantially prevailing al the balance shect date Taxable profit may differ from profil as reported in the Income Statement because il excludes
items of income or cxpense thal are Laxable or deduclible in other years and it furiher excludes ilems that are never laxable or deductible

The lax cffects of income tax losses available for carry forward are recognized es an assct when il is probable thal [uturc taxable profits will be svailable against
which these losses can be utilized

Financial lnsiruments

Finencial assels and financial lisbilities arc recognized on the Company's balance sheel when Lhe Company becomes a party Lo the contractual provisions of the
investmenl A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual cash Mows of the loan expire or the Company transfers its rights Lo receive those cashflows inan
outright sale in which substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred. The Company classifics its financial assels and financial liabilitics
in the calegories: loans and advances Lo customers and borrowings rom group Company
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Noles to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Loans and receivables

The Loans and receivables include Loans and Advances (o customers, which arc measured at inilial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured al
amorlized cosl using Lhe efTeetive interest rale method. Approprialc allowance for impairment for cstimaled i amounls are ¢ ized in Lhe Income
Statemenl when here is objective evidence thet Lhe asset should be impaired

The nominal or cost valuc of the other reccivables, which arc nol iraded in active markets or for which no valualion techniques can be applied is assumed (o
approximale their fair value

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
thal is readily convertible 1o a known amount of cash and are subject Lo an wsignificant risk of changes in value

Impairment

The Company assesses at each balance sheel date whether thre is objeclive evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets should be impaired A
financial asset or a group of financial assels is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there 15 objeclive evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
cvenls Lhat occurred afler the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss cvent) and that the loss event (or cvents) has an impact on the estimated [uture cash flows of
the financial asscl or group of financial asscts that can be reliably estimated Objeclive evidence that a financial asscl or group of assets is impaired includes
obscrvable dala thal comes Lo the allenlion of the Company aboul the following lass cvents:

a) significant finencial dilficulty of the issuer or obligor;

b) & breach of contract, such as a default or delinqueney in interest or principal payments;

¢) lhe Company granting lo the borrowar, for economic or legal reasons relating Lo the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession lhal the lender would not
otherwise consider;

d) it becoming probable that the borrower will enler bankruptcy or other financial reorganizalion;

¢) the disappearancce of an aclive market for thal [inancial assct becausc of [inancial difficultics; or

£) obscrvable dats indicaling that therc is a measurable decreas: in the ctimaled fisture cash Qows [rom a group of financial assets since (he initial recognition of
those assels, alihough the decrease cannol yet be identified with the individual finapeisl sasels in the group, inchuding

- adverse changes in the payment stalus of borrowears in the group; or
- nalional or local econarric condilions that correlale with defaults on Lhe assels in the group

The Company asscsses at each balance sheet date whelher objeclive evidence of impairment exist for each financial asset individually
We refer you Lo note 6, section 'Impairmenl policy’
The criteria thal the Company uscs (o determine Lhal there is objective evidence of an impairment loss inchide

- Delinquency in conlractual paymenls of principal or interest;
- Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower,

- Breach of loan covenants or anditions;

- [niliation of bankruplcy procecdings;

- Detcrioralion of the borrower’s competitive position; and

- Delerioration in Lhe value of collateral

The eslimaled period between a loss occurring and its i is incd by for cach identificd loan.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest-bearing horrowings

Interest-bearing b ings arc ized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorlized cost using Lhe elToclive intercst method. Applying the
cffective interest method, the cnlity amortises any (ces, ransaction cost and other premiums or discounts included in the calculation of the effective interest rate over
the expecled life of the underlying liability Any such ization would be ized in the Income

De-recognition of financlal labilities

A financial liability is derecogrized when the obligation under Lhe liability is discharged, cancelled or expires When an existing financial liabilily of the Company is
replaced by anolhier from Lhe same counlerparly on substantially difTcrent lerms, o the lerms of an existing liability are substantially modificd, such an exchange or
modification is Irealed as an exlinguishment of the original liability and the recognilion of a ncw liebility The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in Lhe income stalemenl

The Company considars the Llerms Lo be sub: ially dillerent, if the di d present value of the cash flows under the new lerms, including any fees paid nel of
any fees received and discounted using the original effective inleresi rale, is al least 10% different from he discounled present value of the remaining cash flows of
the original financial liability

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when Lhe Company has a present legal or conslruclive obligation as a resull of past events, il is probablc that en outflow of resources
cembody g econamee benefits will be roquirad to seitle the ohlig and reliable cimates of the ammant of the obdigation cat be made  The amount racognessd as

& provision {x (he best estimate of the expersbiture roquared 1o settle the present obligation at the reporting date. taking intis sccourd risks end uneentaintics
surroundsit the: atmoant 1 be recognizad a3 & provisen |'rovisions are reviewad sl csch reponting date and adjusted to reflest the current best estinate. 1,
subsequently, it is no longer probable thal an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required [o settle the obligation, the provision is reversed

Trade payables
Trade payable are initially measured at fair value and are subscquently measurad al amorlized cost, using the effective interest rale method

Other payables

Other payables arc recognized initially at [air value The nominal or cost value of the other payables, which arc nol traded in aclive markets or for which no
valuation lechniques can be applied, is assumed lo approximale their fair value Olher payables are subsequently stelcd at amortized cost Other payables are
classified as current liabilines, unless the Company has indisputable right to posipene the selttement of obligations for al leasl 12 months afler the balance sheel
dale

Equity instruments
Equily instruments issued by Lhe Company are recorded al the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost

w

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow stalement has been prepared in accordance wilh the indirect method. The presentation for lhe year 2016 has nol changed in comparison for the year
2015
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements m sl Decomber 31, 2016
(in EUR)

4 PRINCIPLES OF DETERMINATION OF RESULT

(a) General
Result is delermined as (he difference belween income generated by loans, and the cosls and other charges for the year.
Income from transaclions is recognized in the year in which it is realized.

(b) Interest income and expenses
Interest income and interest expense are recognized in Income Statement for ell interes! bearing financial instruments

For all interest bearing financial instruments, interest income or inlerest expense is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate, which is the rate
that exacily discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expecled tife of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, (o the
nel carrying amount of the financial asset ar financial liability (on an amortized cost basis) The calculation includes all contractual (erms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment options) but nol fulure credit losses The calculation includss all fees and points paid or received between parties to Lhe contract that are
an integral part of the effective interest rale, lransaclion costs and all other premiums ar discounls

Fees and Commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when Lhe service has been provided

(© Exchange rate differences
Exchange rale differences arising upon the settlement of monelary ilems are recognized in the Income Statemenl in the period that they arise Exchange rate
differences on non-current assets and non-current liabilities are recognized in Lhe Income Satement in the period they arise.

(d) Taxation

Daomestic corporale income lax is determined by applying Dutch (iscal practice rules and laking into account allowable deductions,
charges end exermptions.
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes Lo the i at 31,2016
(in CUR)

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Critical and j

The Company makes cstimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounls of assets and liabililies wilhin the nex! financial year. Estimales and judgments are
continually evaluated and based on hislorical experience and ather faclors, including expeclalions of future cvents Lhal are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstences The eslimales and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a malerial adjustment lo the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities wilhin
the nexl financial year are addressed below

) Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Company reviews ils loan portfolios lo assess impairment on a monthly basis In determining whether an impairment toss should be recorded in the income
stalament, the Company makes judgments as to whether Lhere is any observable data indicaling that there is a measurable decrease in the cstimaled future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before lhe decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio The evidence may include obscrvable data indicating
that Lhere has been an advarse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local economic conditions thal correlate with defaulls on assels
in the group Management uses cstimales bascd on historical loss expericnce for mssets with credit risk characleristics and objective evidence of impairment similar
10 those in the porifolio when scheduling its future cash flows The methodology and assumplions used for estimaling bolh (hic amount and liming of fulure cash
Nows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimales and aclual loss experience

b) Uncertain tax position

The Company's uncertain lax positions are reassessed by management al the end of cach reporting period Liabilitics arc recorded for income tax positions hat are
determined by managemenl as more likely than not lo resull in additional laxes being levied if the positions were to be challenged by the lax authorities The
assessment is based on the interprelation of lax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the end of the reporting period, and any known court or
olher rulings on such issues Liabililies for penaltics, interest and Laxes olher than on income are recognized based on management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to scltle the obligations al the end of the reporting period.

¢) Deferred income lax asscl recognilion

The recognized deferred tax assel represents income taxes recovarable through future deductions from taxable profits, and is recorded in Lhe income stalement
Dcfered income lax assets are recorded Lo the exlent that realization of the related lax benefit is probable The fulure taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits
thal arc probable in the future are based on 8 medium-term business plan prepared by management and extrapolated resulls therealter The business plan is based
on managemenl expeclations that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

d) Fair value of financial assels and liabilities

The fair values of quoled investments in active markels arc based on current bid prices (financial assets) or offer prices (financial liabilities) If there is no active
markel [or 2 financial instrument, the Company esleblishes fair value using valuation techniques These include the use of recenl anm’s length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valualion lechniques commonly used by market perticipanis The valuetion models reflect current market conditions al the
measuremant dale which may not be representative of market corditions either before or afler the measuremant date As al the balance sheel date, management has
reviewed its models Lo ensure they approprialely reflect current market conditions, including the relative liquidity of the market and credil spreads
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financlal Statemenis & at December 31, 2016
(in FUR)

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activitics exposc il lo a variety of risks Exposure to credil, interes! rale, currency and liquidity risk ariscs i the normal course of the Company’s
business The risk managemenl of the Company is organized from Serbia and the managemenl of the Compeny is providad with the outcome periodically The
Company's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictabilily of financial markets and secks lo minimize potential sdvarse effects on ity financial
performance

The management considers therc is no significant concantralion of the following risks at the balance sheel date The procedures for assessing the risk arc also shown
below:

6.1 Credit risk

Credil risk - is the risk of a financial loss lo the Company if a customer or ly lo a financial i Tails (o meel ils contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the loans and advances (o customers For credil risk management reporting purposes, the Company considers and consolidetes all elements of
credit risk exposure (such as individual obligor risk, seclor risk, repayment risk, ect )

The credil risks are reduced to the fact thal all loans and advances lo cuslomers are 99% guaranteed for repayment by Curobank Ergasias Group companies,
Furobank A D. Beograd and Furobank Ergasias S A All Lhese ies are i italized to cover the granted guaranlics, and thercfore the Company
has only a 1% risk with a meximum of 2 million on its loan portfolio

Buk srodive svates for wheleinle oliets.
The 11 grade syslem defines Lhe credil rating of the borrower (and nol the credit facility), and is based on the weighted avarage of Lhe following risk parameters:

-Financials
-Seclor
-Management
-Operalions

In addilion, other [aclors such as debt scrvicing, change in the borrower’s ownership, elc , may affecl the [inal rating of a customer.
The credil raling is based on a profound analysis of qualilative and quanlilative factors performed by Lhe Company:
~Qualilative factors: arc thosc that deal with the borrower's management, industry, operaling conditions, elc

-Quantilative faclors: arc Lhosc thal refer Lo a scl of various rations (main rations: prolitability, leverage, liquidity) emerging [rom the borrower's financial
slalements (Balance Sheet, Income Slalemenl, notes Lo financiat slalements elc )

Each grade carries s deflined impaimment requirement

Based on the above-mentioned parameters the raling of clients is defined.

Collateral

The customers which were granted loans & advances arc obligated (o provide the Company with irrevocable and unconditional payment guaranlee issucd
by Furobank A D Beograd
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as al December 31, 2016
(i EUR)

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
6.1 Credlt risk (conttnued)

Guaransees

All Joans and advances lo third party customers are 99% guaraniced for repayment by Eurobenk A D. Beograd All loans and advances lo Eurcbank Ergasias
Group companies, except Reco Real Property A D Beograd, are 99% guaranlced by Eurcbank Frgasias S A Eurobank A D Beograd issucd a guarantee for the
loans and advances lo Reco Real Property A D Beograd. The (olal combined exposure for Lhe Company will nol exceed 1% of its lolal loans and advances with a
maximum of EUR 2 million

Maximum cumulative exposure of the Company cannal exceed EUR 2 million The risk of exposures of EUR 2 million are covered with Lhe share capital and share
premium

Menagement of the Company has performed an assessment on the recoverability of all loans and the ability (financial resources and liquidity) of Eurcbank A D and
Eurobank S A and that Eurobank A D and Eurobank Ergasias S A arc able to fulfi] their commitments regarding the guarantee given Lo the Company

Impairment policy

Impaired loans and advances arc loans and advances for which the Bank dclcrmines thal il is probable that it will be unable to collect enlire principal and intercst
due according Lo (he contractual terms of the loan / securities agrecment(s) Loans and advances are individually impaired and uol on a portfolio basis Individually
impaired assels are those which have been individually assessed for impairment and for which an impai loss has been ized For individually assessed
accounts, loans are trealed as impaired as soon as thare is objective evidence thal an impairment loss has been incurred

Depending on the internal credit rating and existing collateral the Company determines whether an impairment charge is required

It is the Company's intenlion Lo be aware of the stale of the borrawer's business and any change in ils credilworthiness at all limes, as regular cvaluation of financial
statements and of the borrower’s business operations are performed.

“Loans" as mentioned in the below noles, referred Lo @ combination of both short and long-lerm loans
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Noles o the i RS at 31, 2016
(in EUR)

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
6.1 Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements:

3111212016 317122015
Credil risk exposures relating to on-balance shect assets are as follows:

Loens and advances lo cuslomers 63,792,866 75,160,738
Less: allowance for impairment -44,279 45,287

63,748,587 75,115,451
Inlerest receivable 58,700 303,687
Other receivables 2,536 98,380
Cash and cash equivalents 1,890,575 1,973,866
Total 65,700,397 77,491,384

Loans and advances are summarized as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 60,049,734 68,740,980
Past due not impaired - 301,688
Individually impaired 3,743,132 6,118,069
Gross 63,792,866 75,160,738
Less: allowance for impairment -44,279 45,287
Net 63,748,587 75,115,451

Included in the gross loans and advances are:
Pasl duc more than 50 days - EUR 787 (2015: EUR 5 863 446)
Of which non-performing loans - EUR 787 (2015: EUR 5 863 446)

Loans and advances neither past dve nor impaired

The loans and advimces Lo cuslomers represent the fully drawn amounts in accordance with the agreements

The credit quality of the portfotio of loans and advances thal were neither past duc nor impaired at 31 December 2016 can be assessed by refrence to Lhe
Company's standard grading system. The following information is based on that system:

J1/122016 31/12/2015

Loans and Loans and
advanees lo advances lo
customers customers
Grades:
Salisfactory rigk (wholesate grades | lo 6) 59,685,571 66,705,821
Walch list and special menlion (wholesale grade 7) 364,164 2,035,159
Total 60,049,734 68,740,980
—— ———
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes Lo (he Financial Statements as @ December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
6.1 Credh risk (continued)

Watch list is a list of loans singlcd out for special surveillance by management to spol iregularities In order Lo pul & loan on watch list the Company considers
many different aspects , quantitative and qualitative Main eriteria for watch listed loans are:

1 Quantitative data :

Financial ralios deterioralion
Fluclualions in profitability.
High leverage

Low financial expenses coverage

11 Cualdative dats

A)  Seclar ch istic - posilion and conditions in the seclor
Markel share reduclion
The sector is influenced by cyclical faclors - seasonalily
No new entrance barriers
Production/ commerce of a single producl

B)  Management Skills - Merkel Knowledge / Experience
Management is performed actually by one person (one-men show)
Potential movements in Lhe highest management execulive levels

C)  Ability to lorecast/ Access lo [unding
Di ies in predicling fulure per of Company
Limited or no access Lo other sources of (inancing
Loans serviced in line with forecasts

Loans and advances past due bui not impaired

3171212016 31/12/2018

Loans and Loans and
advances o advances lo
cuslomers cuslomers
Past due up 10 29 days 301,688
foul 301,688
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements #s at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)
6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
6.1 Credit risk (continued)

Impaired loans and advances individually assessed
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015 Lhe Company did have loans and advances thal were individually impaired.

31/1212016 311122015

Loans and Loans and
advances lo advances to
cuslomers cuslomers
Individually impaired loans - gross 3,743,132 6,118,069
Tolal 3,743,132 6,118,069
—— ——

Movemenls in impairment allowance for Lhe loans & advances Lo customers arc;
3111212016 I 12015

Opening balance 45287 35,368

Impairment charge -1,008 9919

Released provisions -24,286 -

Total 19,992 45,287
———— ——

Comcentration of risks of financiofl urrets with credit risk expatire

Geographical sectors

The following table breaks down the Company's main credit exposure al their carrying amounls, as calegorized by the geographical sectors of our counlerpartics:

Loans and advances lo customers: 317122016 311122015
Serbia 63,792,866 75,160,738
Total 63.792 866 75,160,738

—_—
Industry sectors

The following table breaks down the Company's main credil exposure at their cartying amounls, as categorized by Lhe induslry seclors of our counterparties:

Loans and advancis 1o customers 3122016 31/122015
Commerce and services 53,202,208 62,209,598
Manulacturing 14,871 1,198,707
Conslruction 10,575,787 11,752,433
Total 63,792,866 75,160,738
e — S———

Included In the gross loans and advances are:
Past due more Lhan 90 days - EUR 787 (2015: EUR 5 B63 446)
Of which non-performing loans - EUR 787 (2015: EUR 5 863 446)
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to (he Financial Statements as ai December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

6.2 Market risk

The Company lakes on exposure lo market risks, which 1s the risk that the fair value or [uture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes
in markel priccs Markel risks arise [rom open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific movements
and changes in the lovel of volatility of market rates of prices such as interesl rates, forcign exchange rales and equity prices

6.3 Interest rate risk

The risk thal fulure cash Mows of a financial instrument will Aluctuate because of changes in market intercst rates Loan asscts and loan liabililies are undertaken
back 1o back on terms (hat both rdale to the same variable Buribor or Libor rale The risk is fully compensaled by this balance and hence there is no sensitivity risk
to a change in intcrest rate.

6.4 Forelgn currency risk

The risk thet assets or liabililics in foreign currencies will flucluate in value due to exchange rate fluctualions Loan assets and loan liabilitics are underlaken back
1o back in (he identical currencics Thus this risk is fully compensated by this balance Hence Lhere is only immaterial foreign currency risk, which is on the
difference between interest receivable and inlerest payable stated in a [oreign currency A this time, the only foreign currency exposure is CLIF (Swiss Francs)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensilivily of the Income Statement is Lhe effect of the assumed changes in interest rales and FX ratc on Lhe net interest income [or one year

There is no cffeet on P&L as result of parallel shill in yield curve. Sensitivity analysis used for moniloring market risk do nol represenl worst case scenario:

Semitivity of income statement
317122016 31122018
Foreign exchange sensilivity
10% change of EUR/CHF and USD exchange rale 8,492 7.869
8,492 7,869

The forcign currency risk is only applicablc on cash and cash cquivalents and not on loans & advances lo cuslomers and borrowings (rom group Company
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the as at 31, 2016
(in EUR)

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
65 Liquidity risk

The risk that daily calls on ils cash may excoed available cash resources Loan assets and loan linbililies are undortaken back to back and on a non-recourse basis
This risk is fully compensated by this balance.

The table below presents (he cash flow receivable and payable by the Company under finencial assels and liabilitics by remaining conlractual malurilics al the
balance sheet datc

ERBNEF SER Assets maturity

31/12/2016 Up 1o | month 1-3 months 3-12 monihy 1.5 yeans Over S years Total
Loans & advances to customers 717,016 104,807 23,100,573 2 ,147 18,405,045 63,748,587
Interest receivable 58,700 . - . $8,700
Other receivables . 2,536 - 2536
Taxation . 2,253 - - 2,253
Cash and cash cquivalenls 1,890,575 - - . 1,890,575
Total Assets held for managing liquidity risk 2,666,291 104807 23,108,362 21,418,147 18,4?5,045 65,702,651
ERBNEF SER Liabilities maturity

3171272016 Up to 1 month 1-3 months  4-12 months 1-5years  Over5 years Total
Borrowings [rom group companies 716,268 84,871 23,103,755 19,156,007 18,415,309 61,476,209
Interest payable Lo Group companics 59,625 59,625
Oither pavables 70818 - - 70818
Total Liabilities held for managing liquidity risk 1,677,802 619,653 30,779,620 28,628,257 18,052,742 61,606,652
31/122015 Lip ta 1 month 1-dmonths  3-12 manil S yean Over S years Total
Loans & advances to customers 1,500,729 293,117 30,002,372 26,363,535 16,955,699 75,115451
Interest reccivable 303,687 & = = - 303,687
Other reccivables - - 98,380 - - 98,380
Taxalion - - 12,009 - - 12,009
Cash and cash cquivalents | 573 866 - - - - 1873 866
Total Assets keld for managing liquidity risk 3,778,282 293,117 30,112,761 26363535 16,955,699 77,503,393
ERBNEF SER Liabilitles maturity

V122015 Up to 1 month 13 monihs  4-12 months I-5years Over5 years Total
Borrowings [rom group companics 1,500,000 268,226 28,185,285 26,214,190 16,940,299 73,108,000
Interest payable lo Group companies 49,134 - - - 49,134
Other payables - 138 976 - - 134,976
Total Liabilities held for managing liquidity risk 1,549,134 407,202 28,185,285 26,214,190 16,940,299 73,296,110

6.6 Fair values of financial assets and llabllitles

Fair value presenled in financial statements is the amount for which an asscl may be exchangod, or a liability settled, between informed, willing partics in an am’s
length transaction

Fair value is calculated using markel information available as et the reporting date as well as Lhe individual assessment methods of the Company

Fair value of a financial instrument presented al nominal value is equal Lo its bookkeeping valuc This includes cash as well as liabililics and reccivables without
defined maturily or fixed interest rate For other liabilities and reccivables Lhe expecled future cash flow is discounted up Lo theit present value by means of current
interest rate. Bearing in mind that the variable interest rates are conlractual for the mejority of Company asscls ard liabilitics, changes in the current inlerest rates
tead to changes in Lhe agreed intercst rates

Fair valueof i loan

and polenlial abligations is the same as Lheir bookkeeping values
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes 1o the Financlal Statements as ai December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
6.6 Fair values of flnancial assets and liabilities (contInued)

MAsscunnent of financial tatruments
Company measures fair valuc by means of Lhe following fair value hierarchy reflecting the importance of the inpuls used in measurement

Level | quoted markel prices (uncorrected) in aclive markels for idenlicat instrument

Level 2: Assessment lechniques based on the obscrvable inpuls that are not the quoled prices from the level |, whether dircelly (as prices) or indireclly (derived from
prces) This category includes instruments valued through Lheir use: quoted prices in aclive markets for similar instruments; slated prices for samc or similar
instrumenls in the markels considered as less aclive; or other assessment techniques in which all important inpuls are dircetly or indireclly observable from Lhe
markel dala

Level 3: i used for vable inpuls This category includes al} instruments rdative to which the valuation techniques include inpuls nol
based on obscrvable dala and non-observable inputs Lhat have a significant effect on Lhe valualion of the instruments This calegory includes instruments valued on
the basis of quoled prices of similar instruments with significant non-observable adjustmenls or assumplions necessary lo maintain the differance between the
instruments

Fair value of [inancial asscls and liabililics (raded in active markets is based on quoted markel prices or prices quoled by dealers: For all other financial instruments
the Company determines fair valuc by mcans of asscssment Lectmiques

Asscssment techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparisons wilh similar instruments for which there is an obscrvable markel
price and other assessmenl models Assumplions ard inpuls used in assessment techniques include risk [rec and benchmark interest rales, loan margins and other
premiums used in assessment of discount rate, bond and share prices, forcign currency exchange rates, capital and capilal indexed prices and expecied oscillations of
the prices and correlalions The aim of i is o d inc the fair value which reflects the price of a financial instrument as al Lhe reporting date
that would be defined by market participanis in [ree ransactions carried out al an arm’s length

The availability of the obscrvable market prices and model inpuls d the need for by and reduces the inty arising [rom
delormining the fair value The availability of the obscrvable markel data and inputs varies based on Lhe product and markel and is prone to change due to particular
occurrences and general condilion of the future markels

I'he Company docs not heve any [inancial instruments which is measured al far valuc

The [oflowing lable presents the fair value of financial instruments nol measured al fair value and analyscs hem according Lo the fair value hierarchy within which
Lhe fair value measurament Lakes place:

31/122016 3171212015
In EUR Boak valise Fulrvalue  Book value Fair value
Financial (roonetary) assels
Cash and cash cquivalenls 1,890,575 1,890,575 1,973,866 1,973,866
Loans and advances [rom cuslomers 63,748,588 63,007,690 75,115,451 73,094,867
Olher assels 61,236 61,236 414,076 414,076
Tolal 65,700,399 64959501 77,503,393 75AB2.809
Financial (monetary) Habllities
Borrowings 61,476,209 61,476,209 73.107,999 73,108,000
Onber fubilifics 174,721 174,721 188,110 188,110
Total 61,650,930 61,650,930 73296,110 73296110

The fair values of the linancial asscls and liabilities are estimated using discounted cash flow models developed in-house by the Company’s management Due 1o the
size of the Company, crealing a sophisticated and detsiled model 1s not feasible and (herefore Lhe model is subject Lo certain limilations
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financlal Slaiements & at December 31, 2016

(in EUR)
6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUE D)
6.6 Falr values of financial assets and labilities (continued)
In EUR Falr value
317122016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Loans and advances from customers - 63,007,690 - 63,007,690
Total - 63,007,690 - 63,007,690
Liabllities
Borrowings : 61,476,209 - 61476209
Tolal - 61476209 - 61476209
V122015 Level 1 Level 2 Leveld To_!a_l
Assels
1.cnns ned advances fiom cusomen . 73.094.867 73.094,867
Tolal - 13094867 - 73094867
Liabilities
Borrowings - 73,108,000 - 73,108,000
Total - 73,108,000 » 73,108,000

Where possible, fair valuc of borrowings and advances is based on the abscrvable market transactions If observablc market iransactions are nol available, fair value
is assessed by means of assessment models such as cash [low discoun techniques Asscssment lechnique inpuls include he expecied toan losses over the course of
loan duration, interest rates, advances, and source date or secondary markel dala For collalcral dependant reduced (impaired) loans, fair value is measured based on
Lhe value of the allending collaleral Model inputs may include data by Lhird party brokers besed on the OTC trading aclivity, and information oblained from other
markel parlicipants which include observable primary and secondary transaclions

Table below presents Company classification for each class of financial assels and liabilitics and their (air value as at 31 Deeember 2016:

In EUR
Kept at falr Loans and Amoriized Tolal book
31122016 Held (o maturlty ruceivables AFs — ot Falr value
Cash and cash equivalents 3 s 1,890,575 . . 1,890,575 1,890,575
Assels held to maturity - - . .
Loans and advances from customen - . 63,748,588 - - 63,748,588 63,007,690
Other assels - : . 61.237 61.237 61.237
Tolal assels - - 55,630,163 - 61237 65,700 64,959,
Borrowings . = . . 61,476,209 61,476,209 61,476,209
Oher liabilities - - - : 130,439 130,439 130,439
Total liabilities - - - < 6L606,648 61,606,648 61,606,649
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes 1o the Financlal Statements s ot December 31, 2006
(in EUR)
6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

6.6 Fuir valoes of financial avsely and labilities (continued)

Table below presents Company classificalion [or cach class of [inancial assets and liabilties and (heir fair valuc as al 31 December 2015:

Tn EUR
Kept at fair Loans and Amoriized Tolal baok :

3122015 valve Held to maturlty sescivables AFS — ik Fair value
Cash and cash equivalents . . 1,973,866 - - 1,973,866 1,973,866
Asscls held Lo maturity -
Lavans and advances from cudomers - - 75,115,451 - . 75,115,451 73,094,867
Other assels - - . - 414,076 414,076 414,076
Tolal assets - - 77,089,317 ~ 414‘076 77,503,393 75,462,809
Borrowings : - 73,108,000 73,108,000 73,107,999
Other liabilities - - = - 188,109 188,109 188,109
Total liabilities - - - - TJ&%. 10 'F.I‘N&,l(ﬂ 13,206,100

Methodologies and assumptions used in determining fair value of those financial instruments not yet recorded at fair value in the financial stalemenls are described
below

Asscls whose [air value approximates their bookkeeping value

For [inancial assets and liabilitics thal arc liquid or have short-lerm maturity (less Lhan onc year), Lhe ion is that their bookkecping value i Lheir
fair value This assumption is also applied lo borowings and financial instruments with variable rate

Financial instraments with fioood rate

Fair value of (inancial asscts and liabilities with fixed rale recorded at amortized value is assessed by comparison with market inlcrest rates al inilial recognition
based an the currenl markel rates offered for similar [inancial instruments

The assessed [air valuc of borrowings with fixed inlcrest rate is based on (he discount of cash lows by applying the prevailing inlercst rates to money markel debl
wilh similar risk and maturity

6.7 Capital management

The Company aclively manages capilal besc (o cover risk inherent (o the business. The Company’s objeclives, when managing capilal are:
To provide an adequale level of capilal so as lo enabtc he Company lo continue its operalions as a going concern
To meintain a sirong capital base lo support Lhe development of its business

Capitgl consisls of issued and paid up capital, sharc premium and olher reserves The Company is not required to comply with any capilal requirements sl by the
regulators
There have been no material changes in the Company 's managemen of capilal during the year

The capital of the Company is presented below:
317122016 IV 122015

Issued and paid-up capital 18,000 18,000
Share premium 1,982,000 1,982,000
Other reserve 2,096,005 2,207,283
Total equity 4,096,005 4,207,283
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016

(in EUR)
7 LOANS & ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
31122016 317122015
Loans to Serbian corporale clients 63,792,866 75,160,738
Added / (Less): allowance lor impairment -18,474 -19,482
Added / (Less): bulfa SME -25,805 -25,805
63,748,588 75,115,451
Loan repayments duc:
Up lo 1 month 711,016 1,500,729
1-] months 104,807 293,117
4-12 months 23,103,573 30,002,371
T 23925396 31,796,218
1-5 years 21,418,147 26,363,535
Over 5 years 18,405,045 16,955,699

3

>

39,823,192 43,319,233
s E———

Loans bear variable inlerest ranging from 1 month to 3 month Euribor/Libor plus a spread ranging from a minimum 2 20% Lo a maximum of 5 7% and accarding lo
the client specific Credit Facilily Agreements 99% of the loan value is secured by a guaranice from cither Eurobank A D Beograd, in Serbia, (under Master and
Guaraniee Agreement daled December 4, 2006) or by the Company's sharcholder, Furobank Ergasias S A

Inlerest reccivable amounting to EUR 1575.531 has been included in the current loans and advances Lo customers on the balance sheel

INTEREST RECEIVABLE
31/122016 31212018

Interest on loans to Serbian corporale clienls 57,593 275,202
Ddault inlerest receivable 1,108 28,485

58,700 303,687
—

OTHER RECEIVABLES
31/122016 31172018
Other receivables 2,536 98,380
2,536 98,380

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Descripilon J/1212016 311122015
Eurobank Privalebank Luxembourg S A EUR 1.00000 1,348,732 1,425,973
Turobank Privalcbank Luxcmbourg S A CHF 107510 71,275 61,190

1,420,007 1,487,163
ING Bank EUR 100000 5,000 439,781
Eurobank Private Bank Lusembourg S A EUR 100000 422,313 1,686
Turobank Frgasias S A EUR 1 00000 43235 43,235

1,890,575 1,973,866
e —— ———

The total balance of cash and cash equivalents consists of & total balance in eure of EUR 1 819.300 (2015: EUR 1912.676) and in Swiss Franc of

CHF 76628 (2015: CHF 66 140)

I'he outlook of the credit ratings of the Eurobank Privalebank Luxembourg S A , Eurobank Ergasias S A and ING Bank N V. can be classified as 'Stable’
There are no restrictions on Lhe availability of cash and cash equivalenls These arc readily available
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes (o the Financial Staternents as at December 31, 2016

11 EQUITY

(in EUR)

The Company's aulhorized share capital amounts lo EUR 90 000 and consists of 90.000 ordinary shares wilh a nomina! valuc of EUR 1 each
As at December 31, 2016, 18 000 shares were issued and fully paid-up For the movements in the Equily we rdfr to the Stalement of Equity on page 10 of this

report

TRB New Europe Funding B V s a subsidiery of Eurobank Ergasias S A , a Bank incorporated in Greeee and listed on the Athens Stock Exchange.

LIABILITIES

12 BORROWINGS FROM GROUP COMPANY

=

Finaring borrowings from group Company:
Eurobank Privale Bank Luxembourg S A

Repaymant due:
Up to | month
1-3 months
4-12 months

1-5 years
Over 3 years

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

61,476,209 73,107,999

61,476,209 73,107,999
e — ———

716,268 1,500,000
14871 268,226
23,173,755 28,185,285
23904894 29953511
19,156,007 26,214,190
18415309 16,940,299
37,571315 43,154,489

Borrowings bear veriable interest ranging [rom 1 month to 3 month Euribor/lLibor plus 2 25% unlil 31 December 2016

They are fully secured by virlue of the Request for the Issuance of a Letier of Guarantee, dated Dacember 14, 2006, however amended, in which Lhe Furobank
Ergasias S A undcrlakes Lo repay the Eurobank Private Bank Luxembourg S A in casc of default by the Company aller being called Lo tepay. The current loans

are repayable on a basis mirroring Lhat in the Loans in note 7 above

INTEREST PAYABLE TO GROUP COMPANY

Delault intcrest payable

Repayments are due within 3 months
OTHER PAYABLES

Tradc payables

Accrued audil fees

Several services and fees due to Eurobank Ergasias S A
Other payables

Page 30

31/12/2016 31/12/2015

59625 49,134

59,625 49,134

31/12/2016 31122015

39,996 115,890

27,300 22,110

506 506

_ 3o 41

70,814 138,976
—— S——
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15 Corporate Income Tax

ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Noten 10 the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

As al Decomber 31, 2016, Uis iten can be detaited as follows:

Profit before income tax
Less: Tax frec or non-taxable income:
- Exemptions

Taxable profit

Statulory (ax rate 20% over 200,000
Stalulory lax rale 25% over remaining amount

Corporale Income lax current year

Cifective lax rate

The movements in the Taxalion are as follows:

Opening balance

Receipl of preliminary assessment 2013

Receip of preliminary assessment 2014
Paymenls made via preliminary assessment 2016
Paybale CIT 2016

Value added tax reclaimed

Valoe adidid tax roclaimable

Balance as at December 31, 2016

—_auuaos_avis

91,964 2060197
184535

26,571 261,197

19314 40,000

15399

—lo3ia 5209
e s

21% 21%
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
12,009 -178,896
. 151,466
23,435 -
35,398
-19314 :
-2,404 -1,920
D 23,342

PrTR—rT

The nominal Corporate income tax rale in the Netherlands is 20% for the first EUR 200.000 and 25% for the remaining taxable resull Based upon the taxable result
of the Company during Lhe year under review, the effeclive Corporale income tax is 0%

16 COMMISSION EXPENSES

Interest expense banks
Introduction fee to Eurobank A D. Beograd

Finance expense breakage Eurobank Private Bank Luxembourg S A.

Guarantee fee Lo Eurobank Ergasias § A
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e _suinms
1,189 -

39,996 72,000

1,607 168

- 2,091

42,792 74,259
T ———
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to the Financial Statements & af December 31, 2016

(in EUR)
17 OTHER NET INCOME
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
Other income 4,139 40,000
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 440 7,079
4,579 47,079
—— E———
18 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
317122016 31/12/2015
Management and domiciliation fec 93,854 86,444
Tax advisory fec 14,450 26,114
Other 23,600 30,823
Other impairments 98,380 B
230,283 143,381
e —— ———
T'he sudit fees of FUR 15.000 (2015: EUR 15.000) included under "Other” solely compriscs the [ecs of exlemal i audilor Pri th ooper:

Accounlants NV [or the statutory audil of the financial stalaments The external independent audilor has niot charged any fees relaling to other assurance rdated
services, lax, consulling or any olher consulling services

19 RELATED PARTIES

In November 2015, following the completion of the Bank’s share capilal increase, fully coverad by inveslors, instilutional and others the percentage of the Bank's
ordinary shares wilh voling rights held by the 1IFSF decreased [ram 35 41% lo 2 38%

Despite the i i decrease of ils the HFSF is still considered to have signilicant influence over the Bank In particular, in the
conlext of the Lew 3864/2010, as in force, HFSF cxerciscs ils voling rights in the Bank’s General Assembly only for decisions concerming the amendment of the
Bank’s Articles of Association, including he increase or decrease of the Bank’s capital or Lhe granting of a comresponding aulhorization to the Bank's Board,
decisions concerning the mergers, divisions, conversions, revivals, cxlension of duration or dissolution of Lhe Bark, the transfer of assets (including the sale of
subsidiaries), or any other issuc requiring approval by an increased majority as provided for in Company Law 2190/1920 In addilion, the Bank has enlered into a
new Relationship Framework Agreement (RFA) with the HF SF on 4 December 2015 replacing the previous one, signed on 26 August 2014
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes (o the Financial Staternents us at December 31, 2016
(in EUR)

19 RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

Transactions with related parties (or the year ended on 31 Decemnber 2016 are presented in Lhe Lable below:
31/12/2016 31122015

Interest income on loans & advances ERB Leasing A.D. Beograd 26,616 177,679
Interest income on loans & advances IMO Property Investmenls AD Beograd 407,875 546,234
Interest income on loans & advances Reco Real Property AD Beograd 49,672 57,227
Interest income on loans & advances ERB Asset Fin. d 0 o Beograd - 2,576
Interest expense on borrowings -1,375,723 -2,026,608
Commission expenses 42,792 -74,259

-934,352 -1,317,151

The relaled party transaclions that refer Lo Lhe Balance Sheet can be specified as [ollows:
31/122016 3111212018

Loans & advances 10 cuslomers ERB Leasing A D Beograd 716,268 2,044,731
Loans & advances Lo customers IMO Property Investments AD Beograd 20,400,000 23,900,000
Loans & advances lo cuslomers Reco Real Property AD Bengrad 2,440,000 2,510,000
Current account with Eurobank Private Bank Luxembourg S A 1,420,007 1,487,163
Current account with Eurcbank Ergasias § A 43,235 43,235
Borrowings {rom group Company 61,476,209 -73,107,999
Inlcrest payable to group Company -59,625 49,134
Other payables -3,518 -506

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The EUR Smin relates lo the guaraniee provided by Eurobank Ergasias 8 A for an overdrall provided by Eurobank Private Bank Luxembourg
(overdrall is nol ulilised)
The EUR 0 2 min guaraniee provided by Eurobank Ergasias S A has been cancelled as of 16 May 2016 since the residual credit risk nol covered
by Eurcbank A D Beograd is covered by the Company’s capital amounting to FUR 2 min.
21 OTHER INFORMATION ON GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the year under review the Company did not have any emplayees Hence, it did not pay any wages and related social security
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Notes to (he Financial Statements as at December 31, 2016
(in FUR)

1! DIRECTORS

Duwring the year under review, the Company had four Managing Dircclors, who received no ramuncration during Lhe current or the previous financial year The
Company has no Supervisory Directors

23 OTHER INFORMATION

POSITION OF EUROBANK GROUP
Macroeconomic environment

Greeee’s real GDP s expecled Lo grow by | 8% in 2017, according lo the 2018 Drall Budget submulled in Parliament in early October 2017 (European
Commission Autumn Forccast for 2017 at 1 6%) from -0 03% in 2016, according Lo recent Hdlenic Stalistical Authority (ELSTAT) data On the fiscal [ront, the
2016 Greece's primary balance regisiered a surplus of 39% of GDP oulperforming the 0 5% of GDP Third Economic Adjustmenl Program (TEAP) larget
According Lo Lhe 2018 Drall Budget Lhe primary surplus for 2017 and 2018 is expected at 2 2% and 3 6% of GDP, respectively

[n Junc 2017, Greece, alter the implementalion of a series of prior aclions including structural reforms and fiscal structural measures amounting to 2% of GDP for
the posl program period, suceessfully concluded the second review of TEAP, which paved the way for Lhe release of Lhe next loan tranche to Greece unda the
existing adjustment program, amounting Lo € 8 5 bn in lwo sub-tranches, for debl scrvicing needs and arrcars clearance The [irst sub-tranche of €7 7 bn hes been
disbursed in June 2017 The second sub-tranche of € 0 8 bn was disbursed in lalc Oclober 2017 afler the progress by Lhe GreeL aulhorilies lowards the clearance of
the general govemnmenl arrears lo the privale seclor On 25 July 2017, 1he Greck governmenl, on the back of the posilive devel issued a €3
bn five-year bond at a yield of 4 625% [or the firsl time since July 2014. The proceeds of (he bond issuc will be used for further liability/debt managemenl and for
the build-up of a state cash bufTer in Lhe context of the |5 June 2017 Turogroup’s decisions

The complelion of Lhe second program review hes reduced Lhe uncertaintics Lhat prevailed during the first months of the year and improved expectations for an
increase in the domeslic cconomic aclivity in the sccond hall of 2017 The third review of TEAP commenced al the end of October 2017 and its limely completion
would lead Lo he disbursement of an additional €5 bn The decisive implementation of the reforms agreed in he context of the TEAP, the implementation of further
debt relief measures in accordance with 24 May 2016 group decisions, the mobilization of European Union (EU) furding Lo support domestic investment and
job creation, the altraction of foreign and domestic capital and the adoplion of an exiroverl cconomic development model would facililale the restoration of
conlidenice in the prospects of the Greek economy end the [urther stabilizalion of Lhe domeslic cconomic environmenl, which are necessary condilions for (he return
of (he counlry lo a strong and sustainable growth path

Currently, the main risks and uncertaintics arc associaled with (a) the possible delays in the implementalion of Lhe reforms” agenda in order 1o meel the next targels
and mileslones of Lhe TEAP, (b) the impacl on the level of economic activity and on Lhe attraction of direct investmenls from the fiscal and social security-related
measures agreed under the reviews of Lhe TEAP, (c) the timing of & full lill of restrictions in the frec movement of capital and the rﬁpecllve impact on (he level of
economic activity, (d) Lhe possible slow pace of deposits inflows and/ or possible delays in Lhe effeclive of (NPEs) asa
resull of the I jons in Greece and (c) the geopolitical conditions in the broader region and Lhe exiernal shucks from a slowdown in
the global economy

Liquidity risk

In accordance with the agreement wilh the European partners Lhe authoritics arc commitled Lo preserving sufficient liquidity m Lhe banking system, as long as
Greece meets ils obligalions under the ESM program The successful completion of the secord review of Lhe TEAP has enhanced Greece’s credibility lowards the
inlernational markets and improved Lhe domestic economic senlimeni, which along with the rdum to positive economic growth ralc is expecled to accelarale in lumn
the deposit inflows in the banking system, the (aster relaxation of capilal controls and the further access to Lhe markels for liquidity

As al 30 September 2017, Eurobank (the Bank) has managed lo reduce its dependence on Eurosysiem [unding mainly through assel deleveraging, deposil inflows
and increased markel repos on covered bonds and Greek Ireasury bills n the same conlext, the Bank also reduced ils participation in Lhe second stream ol the
Halenic Republic’s liquidity support plan
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V,

Notes (o the Financlal Statements as st December 31, 2016

(in EUR)

Solvency sk

The Group monitors closely the in the Greek i i taking into account its direct and indirect exposure {0 sovereign risk A
major arca of focus is the aclive of i with the aim lo subslantially reduce their stock in accordance with the Bank’s
operational targets and laking advantage of the Group’s infernal infr ure, Lhe i gislative changes and (he external parinerships that have laken ar are
expected (o take place

The Group remaing focused on the organic strengthening of ils capilal position by the further ion of pre-provision income while mainlaining ils robust risk
managemenl prectices, and by ding Lo additi iniliatives ated with the restructuring, ion or optimization of ions, in Greece and

abroad, that will generate or release further capital and/or reduce risk weighted assets. The Group®s Common Equily Tier 1 (CETI) ratio stood at 173 % al 30
Seplember 2017 (31 December 2016: 17 6%) and the net profil atiribulable to shareholders amounted to € 61 million for the period ended 30 September 2017 (31
December 2016: € 230 million)

The N \aking into i ion Lhe above faclors relating (o the adequacy of the Group’s capilal posilion and its anlicipaled conlinued access o
Lurosyslem funding aver the foreseeable future, as well as Lhe improving macroeconomic conditions in Greece, has been satisfied that (he financial statements of the
Company can be prepared on a going concern basis

Post balance sheet events

As per January 30, 2017, Mr. ER Janssenss has resigned as Managing Direcior of the Company, and as per seme date Mr L P Elstershamis has been appointed
Managing Dircclor of the Company

Nomajor post balance sheet events alfecting the financial slalements have occurred (o dale

The Board of Managing Directors,
S Psychogyios E Zois
L P Elstershamis R Wemmi

Amstadam, January 12, 2018
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ERB NEW EUROPE FUNDING B.V.

Amsterdam
Other Information

Statutory provision regarding appropriation of Result

Subject to the provisions under Dutch law that no dividends can be declared until all losses have been cleared, the other reserves
are at the disposal of the shareholder in accordance with Article 13 of the Company's Articles of Association

Furthermore, Dutch law prescribes that any profit distribution may only be made to the extent that the shareholders' equity
exceeds the amount of the issued capital and the legal reserves.

on ol 1

The Board of Managing Direclors proposes to add the net loss for the year to the other reserve. This proposed allocation of result
has been incorporated in the financial statements, and is subject to the approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Distributions to shareholders are subject to two tests, namely, the equity test and the distribution or liguidity test
The directors of the B.V. must approve a praposed distribution and may only refuse if they know (or ought to reasonably foresee)
that the B V. after the distribution would no longer be able to repay its debts as and when they fall due (art. 2:216 2 DCC)

Independent auditor” :

Reference is made to the independent auditor's report hereinafter
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ERB New Europe Funding B.V.

Attn: the board of managing directors
Herengracht 500

1017 CB AMSTERDAM

12 January 2018

Reference: MC/e0413501/TH/jm

Subject: financial statements and auditor’s report 2016

Dear Sirs

We are pleased to send you a stamped version of the financial statements 2016, and our signed
auditor’s report dated 12 January 2018. Furthermore, we enclose three copies of the aforementioned
auditor’s report.

We provided one version of the auditor’s report with an original signature. This auditor’s report needs
to be included in the section ‘Other information’ accompanying the financial statements which are
signed by the board of managing directors and is for your own records. A copy of the auditor’s report
includes the name of the external auditor, but lacks a personal signature. We confirm that we give you
our consent to include a copy in the section ‘Other information’ accompanying a copy of the financial
statements 2016, which corresponds with the attached stamped version of the financial statements.

Signing and adopting the financial statements

The original financial statements must be signed by the board of managing directors before they are
offered to the general meeting of ERB New Europe Funding B.V. These financial statements must be
adopted by the general meeting of ERB New Europe Funding B.V. This adoption must be recorded in
the minutes of the meeting. If the financial statements are not adopted within 45 days from the date of
issuance of our auditor’s report, our consent to include the report in the section ‘Other information’
accompanying the financial statements will be revoked. If that is the case, please contact us to discuss
the situation.

Please send us a signed copy of the financial statements for our file.

Subsequent events

Please note that, if prior to the adoption of the financial statements there are circumstances or events
with significant financial implication for the company (subsequent events), the financial statements
need to be adjusted. Naturally, in such a situation, our consent is revoked.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V., Fascinatio Boulevard 350, 3065 WB Rotterdam, P.O. Box 8800,
3009 AV Rotterdam, the Netherlands
T: +31 (0) 88 792 00 10, F: +31 (0) 88 792 95 33, www.pwc.nl

‘PwC' is the brand under which Pri housaCoopers A tants N.V. (Chambar of C: 34180285), Pri h Coopers Belastingadvi NV
(Chamber of Commarce 34 180284), F h Coopers § y M.V. (Chambar of C 341802a7), P t Coopers Compli Semvicas BV
(Chambar of Commerce 514144086), PricawaterhouseCoopers Pansions, Acluarial & Insurance Services B.V. (Chambaer of Commarce 54226368), Pricawatarhouss-
Coopers BV (Chambar of Commarca 34180283) and oiher companies operate and provida servicas. These services are governed by General Terms and Conditions
(algemane voorwaardan'), which include pravisians regarding our liability. Purchasas by these companies are governed by General Terms and Conditions of Purchase
‘alg 18 Inkoop dan’), Al www.pwe.nl more datall | on these ies is avallable, including these Genaeral Terms and Conditions and the
General Terms and Conditions of Purchase, which have also been filed at tha Amstardam Chamber of Commerce.
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Consent to use and make public our auditor’s report and related conditions

We confirm that we give you our consent to publish the copy of our auditor’s report together with the
corresponding complete set of the financial statements (including the directors’ report and the
‘Other information’), provided that the financial statements will be adopted without any changes by
the general meeting of ERB New Europe Funding B.V.

If you publish the financial statements and a copy of the auditor’s report on the Internet, you must
safeguard that the financial statements are adequately segregated from any other information on the
website. This could be done by publishing the financial statements as a separate, non-editable file, or
by including a warning as soon as the reader leaves the financial statements (such as ‘You are now
leaving the protected audited financial statements’).

Filing requirements

Within eight days after adoption of the financial statements, filing with the Chamber of Commerce
must be fulfilled.

The financial statements must be adopted within seven months after year-end or, in case the general
meeting of ERB New Europe Funding B.V. has formally extended the period for preparing, the
financial statements must be adopted and filed within twelve months after year-end at the latest.

It should be borne in mind that filing the financial statements is required by law and that any failure to
file them constitutes an offence. In certain cases, failure to file may lead to you, as director, being held
liable.

There is no requirement for the board of managing directors to sign the accounts which are to be filed
at the Chamber of Commerce. In order to avoid the risk of identity theft we recommend that you do
not file financial statements and auditor’s reports which include a signature. In an accompanying letter
to the Chamber of Commerce, you should mention that the original financial statements have been
signed by the board of managing directors and adopted by the general meeting of ERB New Europe
Funding B.V., and the date on which this took place.

Information systems

In accordance with Section 2:393 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code, independent auditors must report
their findings resulting from the audit of the financial statements with respect to the reliability and
continuity of electronic data processing. As a result of our audit procedures we have no matters to
report.

The responsibility for sufficient reliability and continuity of the electronic data processing lies
primarily with management of the company. Our audit of the statutory financial statements is focused
on issuing an opinion on the fairness of presentation of the financial statements and not the reliability
and continuity of automated data processing as a whole or parts thereof.

It has been agreed that no separate examination of the reliability and continuity of automated data
processing as a whole or parts thereof is carried out. If we had carried out specific procedures on the
above aspects, additional findings might have been identified and reported to you.

ERB New Europe Funding B.V., 12 January 2018, MC/eo413501/TH/jm
Page2of 3
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Fraud

The primary responsibility for preventing and detecting fraud and mistakes rests with management.
The board of managing directors of the company sees to it that management develops adequate
procedures and takes appropriate measures if necessary. The auditor is responsible for evaluating the
risk that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud, mistakes or
misappropriation of assets.

If during the course of our audit we had detected an act of fraud, we would have reported any such
matter to you. If, in the event of a material fraud in respect of financial reporting, no appropriate
action had been taken by you, we would be required to report this to the relevant authorities.

During the audit of the financial statements 2016, no indications of fraud came to our attention.

t hesitate to contact us, if you have any queries.

rely
houseCoopers Accountants N.V.

M.P.A. Corver RA
partner

Enclosures

ERB New Europe Funding B.V., 12 January 2018, MC/eo413501/TH/jm
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Independent auditor’s report

To: the general meeting of ERB New Europe Funding B.V.

Report on the financial statements 2016

Our opinion
In our opinion ERB New Europe Funding B.V.’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the company as at 31 December 2016, and of its result and its cash flows for the

year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

What we have audited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2016 of ERB New Europe Funding B.V.,
Amsterdam (‘the company’).

The financial statements comprise:

. the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

o the following statements for 2016: the income statement, the statements of comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows; and

e the notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements
is EU-IFRS and the relevant provisions of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the section ‘Our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements’ of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Ref.: e0413501

PricewaterhouseCaopers Accountants N.V., Fascinatio Boulevard 350, 3065 WB Rotterdam, P.O. Box 8800,
3009 AV Rotterdam, the Netherlands
T: +31 (0) 88 792 00 10, F: +31 (0) 88 792 95 33, www.pwe.nl

‘PwC’ is the brand undar which PricewaterhouseCoopars Accountants N.V. (Chambar of Commerce 34180285), Pri rhauseCoopars Belastingadvl sN.V.
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Independence

We are independent of ERB New Europe Funding B.V. in accordance with the ‘Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assuranceopdrachten’ (ViO — Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence
requirements in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the ‘Verordening gedrags- en
beroepsregels accountants’ (VGBA — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with
respect to rules of professional conduct).

Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains
other information that consists of:

) the directors’ report; and

) the other information pursuant to Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Based on the procedures performed as set out below, we conclude that the other information:
° is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements;
° contains all information that is required by Part g of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained in our audit
of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains
material misstatements.

By performing our procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of such procedures was substantially less than the scope
of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The board of managing directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, including
the directors’ report and the other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the board of managing directors
The board of managing directors is responsible for:

o the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with EU-IFRS
and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code; and for
o such internal control as the board of managing directors determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the board of managing directors is responsible
for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting
frameworks mentioned, the board of managing directors should prepare the financial statements using
the going-concern basis of accounting unless the board of managing directors either intends to
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The board of
managing directors should disclose events and circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

ERB New Europe Funding B.V. - Ref.: e0413501
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Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to plan and perform an audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion aims to
provide reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high but not absolute level of assurance which makes it
possible that we may not detect all misstatements. Misstatements may arise due to irregularities,
including fraud, or error. They are considered to be material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

Materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the
effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

A moge detailed description of our responsibilities is set out in the appendix to our report.

Rotter
Pricef

, 12 January 2018
rhouseCoopers Accountants N.V,

M.P.A. Corver RA

ERB New Europe Funding B.V. ~ Ref.: e0413501
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Appendix to our auditor’s report on the financial statements
2016 of ERB New Europe Funding B.V.

In addition to what is included in our auditor’s report we have further set out in this appendix our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements and explained what an audit involves.

The auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional scepticism throughout
the audit in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence
requirements. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Our audit
consisted, among other things, of the following:

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the intentional override of internal control.

Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the board of managing directors.
Concluding on the appropriateness of the board of managing directors’ use of the going-concern
basis of accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events and/or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report
and are made in the context of our opinion on the financial statements as a whole. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

ERB New Europe Funding B.V. — Ref.: e0413501
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